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                                           ADDENDUM # 6
E-Bid # 20200009

Addendum Date: January 9, 2020
E-Bid Name: Westport Wastewater Treatment Facility Expansion Phase

II
Questions and Answers

Please make the following changes/modifications to the subject bid:

Below you will find the questions submitted by potential proposers and we have 
provided answers to all questions submitted prior to the specified deadline.

NOTE:  The Bid opening date has changed to  February 11, 2020 . The 
last date for questions has been changed to January  10 , 2020 with the 
Addendum being posted no later than January 21, 2020.

Due to the volume of questions, the City is releasing this Addendum 
early. There will be additional Addenda.

1. QUESTION:   Section 26 05 43 paragraph 2.04 B calls for a red-oxide coloring agent as specified in 
section 03 30 00. There is no specification for the red-oxide coloring agent in 03 30 00. The duct 
bank sections on E75 show red warning tape above all duct banks. Is the red-oxide coloring 
required for the concrete?
RESPONSE :   Color  top of  concrete   ductbanks  with Davis Colors Tile Red Concrete Oxide Pigment 
in accordance with mfr. recommendations.

2. QUESTION:   Note 4 on drawing PM11 states that the three baffles and hardware are provided by 
the owner. Please confirm that this includes the FRP weir baffle, FRP Grating, FRP tubes, SS nuts 
washers, rods, epoxy, etc.
RESPONSE:  All materials other than the epoxy will be provided.

3. QUESTION:   Specification 40 23 22 paragraph 1.01 A indicates that there are two (2) new 48" x 
48" gates; drawings PM30 and PM33 show three (3) 48" x 48" gates. Please confirm that three 
(3) 48" x 48" gates are required. 

RESPONSE: The specification was revised per Addendum 3 to correctly indicate there are three 

(3) 48” x 48” slide gates to be replaced.  The gate schedule was also revised by Addendum 3 to 

provide more information on the gates.

4. QUESTION:   Specification 40 23 22 paragraph 1.01 A indicates thimbles are required. Can the 
existing thimbles/openings be reused, or do we need to remove the old thimbles and install new 
in the existing concrete walls? 
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RESPONSE:  Using the existing openings is intended. The specification is revised per Attachment 
A, this addendum.

5. QUESTION:   The Gate schedule on drawing PM 33 does not show all the data required to price 
the gate. Please provide additional data and sections of the gates to properly price the gates.

RESPONSE: The gate schedule was revised by Addendum 3 to provide more information on the 
gates.

6. QUESTION:   The Invitation to Bid and the Bid Details, Bid Information section on the DemandStar 
website clearly note the Bid Type as “Sealed Electronic Bid”; however, the Bid Details, Bid 
Information section on the DemandStar website also states next to the category E-Bidding “No” 
and doesn’t seem to have a way one would submit an electronic bid. After conferring with 
DemandStar, it appears this bid is not currently set up as an E-Bid. Please clarify.
RESPONSE: The bid was reposted to allow electronic bidding.

7. QUESTION:   Please consider extending the bid submission date by two weeks to allow for all 
contractors and trade partners to have  sufficient  time in reviewing the contract documents and 
responsibly submit their bids.
RESPONSE: See above statement with the revised dates.

8. QUESTION :   Please consider extending the questions and RFI deadline to be due 10 days prior to 
the bid submission due date. Many contractors that are interested in bidding have not had an 
opportunity to coordinate all of the documents and ask questions to clarify discrepancies. 
RESPONSE: See above statement with the revised dates.

9. QUESTION:   Page 4 of 45 on the Invitation to Bid indicates that the contract duration is 365 
calendar days with no option to renew. This duration is not achievable given the scope of this 
project and lead times for equipment and gear. Please consider extending the contract duration 
to 24 months or 730 calendar days. 
RESPONSE: The contract period was revised to 670 days in the last addendum.

10. QUESTION:   Please add  Hallsten  and CST to the list of acceptable manufacturers for the 
Aluminum Flat Covers in section 13 34 24 paragraph 1.03 B.

RESPONSE: The specifications are revised per Attachment A, this addendum.

11. QUESTION:   Section 43 22 13 paragraph 3.03 C 4 d requires that the contractor test to confirm 
that the aerators deliver the specified oxygen at the specified efficiencies. Please provide the 
test method or standard that is required for this test. 

RESPONSE: The specifications are revised by Attachment A, this addendum to remove the 
requirement for OTE field testing.

12. QUESTION:   Reference Drawings H02, H03, P03, and P04.  The drawing titles do not coincide 
with the content shown on the drawing.  Please clarify.
R ESPONSE:    The title of sheets H02 and H03 as well as the titles of P03 and P04  have been 
revised per Attachment A, this addendum.

Addendum_#6.pdf Page 2 of 16 received 2020 01 09



Page 3 of 16

13. QUESTION:   Please provide section details for the Chlorine Building Plumbing systems shown on 
drawing P02.
RESPONSE:  Refer to attached revised Drawing P01  as part of Attachment A, this addendum,  for 

section details.

14. QUESTION:   Please provide section details for the Analyzer Building Plumbing systems shown on 
drawing P03. 
RESPONSE:  Refer to attached revised Drawing P01  as part of Attachment A, this addendum  for 

section details.

15. QUESTION:   Please provide specification sections for all the required Plumbing, HVAC, and Fire 
Protection systems
RESPONSE:  Plumbing specifications are shown on Drawings P01 and P03.  HVAC specifications are 
shown on Drawings H01 and H03.  Fire protection specifications are shown on Drawing FP01.

16. QUESTION: Please provide a specification for the curb stop valves shown on drawing P02.
RESPONSE: See the City’s qualified product list included as Appendix C.

17. QUESTION:   Drawing P02 shows a water meter.  Is this meter for the new chlorine building, and 
will it be provided by the owner?

RESPONSE: The water meter is for the new chlorine building; it will be provided by the City.

18. QUESTION:   Will the new split AC systems shown on drawing H01 need to be tied into the  scada  
systems?
RESPONSE: No.

19. QUESTION: Please provide a specification for Division 4 – Masonry.

RESPONSE: A specification is added per Attachment A, this addendum.

20. QUESTION:   Please refer to the Qualifications section of the Invitation to Bid. Section 1.5 states, 
"Five (5) references shall be listed in the Questionnaire from existing firms in Florida to which it 
has provided these types of services in the past or with which it is under Construction for such 
services presently...". In contrast, question 6 of the Contractor's Questionnaire eliminates listing 
current projects and  instructs the contractor to "Please list up to five (5) wastewater treatment 
facility expansion/new construction projects similar in nature to this project that have been 
completed by your firm...". Please confirm completed and in progress projects are acceptable. 
RESPONSE:  Please list only those projects that have already been completed by your firm  and 
are in service to their intended user.

21. QUESTION:   Please refer to the Qualifications section of the Invitation to Bid. Section 1.5 states, 
"Five (5) references shall be listed in the Questionnaire from existing firms in Florida to which it 
has provided these types of services in the past or with which it is under Construction for such 
services presently...". Question 6 of the Contractor's Questionnaire adds an additional 
parameter, stating the projects "are at least 25 million dollars or larger". Please clarify.
RESPONSE: This has been revised in a previous Addendum.
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22. QUESTION:   Please refer to the Qualifications section of the Invitation to Bid. Section 1.5 states, 
"Five (5) references shall be listed in the Questionnaire from existing firms in Florida…". Please 
consider expanding the geography to include projects in the southeast region.
RESPONSE: This has been revised in a previous Addendum.

23. QUESTION:   The Invitation to Bid and Contractor's Questionnaire request contractors to identify 
five (5) wastewater treatment projects similar in nature. Please consider expanding the 
qualifications parameters to include water treatment projects.
RESPONSE: This has been revised in a previous Addendum.

24. QUESTION :   Please refer to the Check-List provided with the Invitation to Bid. The listing of items 
indicates that each document is "uploaded to DemandStar". Section 1.8-Submittal of Bid-states, 
"the submittal shall be in one (1) file". Please confirm one electronic file is acceptable.
RESPONSE: Please upload in one file. 

25. QUESTION:   Please refer to the Subcontracting or Assigning of the Contract section of the 
Invitation to Bid. Section 1.10 states, "The successful Bidder(s) shall provide a listing of all 
subcontractors, suppliers, and other persons and organizations...other than those identified in 
the Bid Reply, to the City within ten (10) days after the bid opening". In contrast, question 8 of 
the Contractor's Questionnaire directs the contractor to "list subcontractors and major material 
suppliers for the project." Please confirm the list of subcontractors is due 10 days post bid 
opening. Additionally, if the listing of any subcontractors or suppliers is required with the bid, 
please identify which trades need to be reported. 
RESPONSE:  Please list any subcontractors that you know you will be using at the time of 
submittal. Then the City will need a complete list of subcontractors prior to the start of 
construction. The City may not have an intent to award within 10 days of the opening.

26. QUESTION:   Section 41 36 11 paragraph 1.01 C 3 f indicates that there are 8 spare 1 - ton 
containers on roller trunnions. Drawing PM25 shows 10 1-ton cylinders. Please clarify.

RESPONSE: The specifications have been revised by Attachment A, this Addendum.

27. QUESTION:   Section X Insurance – 3 states, “in the event the statutory liability of the City is 
amended during the term of this contract to exceed the above limits, the contractor shall be 
required upon thirty (30) days written notice by the City, to provide coverage at least equal to 
the amended statutory limit of liability of the City”. Please confirm that increased costs to the 
contractor resulting from a requirement to provide insurance limits greater than outlined in the 
bid spec shall be reimbursed to the contractor via a change order to the contract.
RESPONSE:  Currently the State requires a $200,000 - $300,000 statutory limit. The likelihood of 
the limit exceeding the $1 mil - $2 mil that we are asking for in the next 2 - year period  is slim. 
However, if this does occur then the City would take that into consideration. 

28. QUESTION:   Section X Insurance - 7 Builder’s Risk Insurance states that contractor shall provide 
builder’s risk coverage which includes soft costs coverage. Please specify the exact limit of soft 
costs coverage that contractor should carry to cover the soft costs as outlined by Owner.
RESPONSE: The value for the Builder’s Risk insurance must be a minimum of $14,500,000.00.

29. QUESTION:   There are no supplemental conditions outlined in the contract documents.  Please 
provide if required.
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RESPONSE: There are no supplemental conditions.

30. QUESTION:   The Specifications table of contents calls out "Division 01 - General Requirements". 
Please confirm that all "General Conditions" are intended to be and are addressed within the 
specification sections provided under "Division 01 - General Requirements".
RESPONSE: Please see the definition of General Conditions vs General Requirements.

31. QUESTION: Will the owner supply the chlorine gas for testing the new chlorine feed system?
RESPONSE: Yes

32. QUESTION:   Please confirm/identify the existing equipment and items to   be painted. Is re- 
painting of the existing plant required?

RESPONSE: Addendum 3 provided clarification on painting requirements.

33. QUESTION: Please confirm/identify the structures to be coated.

RESPONSE: Addendum 3 provided clarification on painting requirements.

34. QUESTION: Please confirm the submerged floors require painting or not.

RESPONSE: Addendum 3 provided clarification on painting requirements.

35. QUESTION: Please identify and provide information/drawings of these existing ring steel plants.

RESPONSE: Addendum 3 provided clarification on painting requirements.

36. QUESTION: Please clarify if the existing aeration basins submerged concrete needs coatings.

RESPONSE: Addendum 3 provided clarification on painting requirements.

37. QUESTION : Please identify/provide information/drawings of new filter structures 
submerged concrete that needs coatings.

RESPONSE: Addendum 3 provided clarification on painting requirements.

38. QUESTION : Please confirm/identify the existing equipment and 
items to be painted. Is re-painting of the existing plant required?

RESPONSE: Addendum 3 provided clarification on painting requirements.

39. QUESTION: Please confirm/identify the existing equipment/structures and items to be painted.

RESPONSE: Addendum 3 provided clarification on painting requirements.

40. QUESTION:   Structural Drawings: The existing North and South wall of the Anoxic/Aeration 
Basins are existing exterior walls that become interior submerged walls.   Is sandblasting 
required for these walls to remove existing exterior coatings?

RESPONSE: Addendum 3 provided clarification on painting requirements.

41. Q UESTION:   Item 5.3 in the “Bid Response” section of the Invitation  To  Bid document on Page 12 

indicates that there are only two bid items – Mobilization/Demobilization and Phase II 

Construction.  The Mobilization/Demobilization item is not to exceed 5% of the project cost. 

Upon review of the Specifications, there is no mention of how and when the item 

“Mobilization/Demobilization” is to be paid or what items are to be included under this bid  

item.  For example, is this item to include costs for bonds and insurance?  How will the costs for 
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mobilization and demobilization be split apart?  Generally, mobilization costs significantly more 

than demobilization.  Will mobilization be paid as one lump sum at the beginning of the project 

and demobilization as one lump sum at the end of the project, or will each be paid over  a period 

of time ?  Please provide a summary of the items to be included in mobilization and 

demobilization, the terms for payment of mobilization and demobilization, and the allowable 

maximum or minimum percentage for each.

RESPONSE:  Specification Section 01 20 00 has been revised per Attachment A, this addendum, 

to provide additional information on the Mobilization/Demobilization bid line item.

42. QUESTION:   Section C on Drawing PM19 refers to Detail 9 on Drawing PM32 for the wall 

penetration.  Detail 9 on Drawing PM32 shows a wall penetration using a sleeve with a modular 

seal.  Please confirm that the 24” Effluent connection at the Clarifier is to be a wall pipe as 

shown in Detail 7 on Drawing PM31 and NOT a penetration with a sleeve and modular seal as 

indicated in the section.

RESPONSE:  The detail reference has been revised by Attachment A, this addendum, to confirm 

wall pipes are required.

43. QUESTION:   Section A on Drawing PM18 and Section 1 on Drawing PM20 do not show wall pipes 

for the penetrations of the 16” RAS/WAS and 30” ML piping through the slab.  Please confirm 

that a wall pipe is required at these penetrations per Detail 7 on Drawing PM31.

RESPONSE: Wall pipes are required.

44. QUESTION:   Section A on Drawing PM19 shows the ductile iron pipe and fittings for the scum 

piping to be glass lined.  Drawing PM17 does not indicate that the ductile iron pipe and fittings 

for the 6” PD piping that the scum line ties into are to be glass lined.  Are the pipe and fittings on 

the 6” PD line to be  Protecto  401 lined or glass lined?  Again, a piping schedule for the entire 

project that lists the pipe material and interior lining for each process would be very helpful.

RESPONSE:   Per the revisions to the specifications provided in Addendum 3, the scum piping can 

be Protecto 401 lined

45. QUESTION:   Drawing PM17 shows a Restrained Joint Coupling on the 30” ML piping at the 

exterior of Clarifier 4.  The only item in the specifications that comes close to this description is 

“RIGID PIPE COUPLINGS/SLEEVES” in Specification 40 23 21, Paragraph 2.11, but the EBAA Series 

3800  Megacoupling  is only manufactured for 4” through 12” piping.  A 30” MJ Sleeve with 

restraints could be considered a “Restrained Joint Coupling”.  Is this acceptable?  If not, please 

provide a specification for the Restrained Joint Coupling required at this location.

RESPONSE:  The specifications have been revised by Attachment A, this addendum, to include a 

specification for restrained joint couplings above 12” in diameter.

46. QUESTION:   Drawings PM21 and PM22 show concrete pipe supports under the 16” RAS piping. 

Detail A on Drawing S25 appears to show a pipe strap on these supports but no details are 

provided.  If they are required, please provide details for these pipe straps (material, width, 

thickness, anchoring requirements).

RESPONSE:    Straps shall be ¼” thick by 3” wide 316 SS straps attached with ¾” diameter 316 SS 

anchors with 7-1/2” embedment.
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47. QUESTION:   Drawing PM21 shows an existing concrete pipe support under the new 16” RAS 

piping just south of the connection to the existing 16” flanged piping.  Please confirm that this is 

an existing concrete support and indicate whether a new pipe strap is required at this location 

per Detail A on Drawing S25.

RESPONSE: Provide a new strap at this location per the response to questions 46 above.

48. QUESTION:   Note 1 in Detail C on Drawing S25 says  “Hot-Dip Galvanize entire pipe support after 

fabrication (except for stainless steel fastening hardware)” .  Note 3 says  “Pipe Support shall be 

hot dipped galvanized, stainless steel, or unless otherwise noted on the drawings and 

specifications.”   The pipe and  u-bolt  in the detail are shown as stainless steel.  Please indicate 

whether the material for the fabricated stanchion saddle supports is to be stainless steel or hot 

dipped galvanized steel.

RESPONSE: The stanchion saddle supports can be HDG.

49. QUESTION:   Drawings E54 and I05 show limit switches on the RAS Pump #5 Discharge Check 

Valves.  Drawing E54 shows a limit switch on the WAS Pump #4 Check Valve but Drawing I05 

does NOT show this limit switch.  Similarly, Drawings I03 and I04 show limit switches on the IR 

Pump Discharge Check Valves and Drawings E46 and E48 do NOT show these limit switches.  The 

Electrical and Instrumentation Drawings each show limit switches on the Filter Dosing and 

Reclaimed Pump Discharge Check Valves.  Specification 40 23 21, Paragraph 2.06 does NOT 

indicate that limit switches are to be provided with the Check Valves.  Please clarify whether a 

limit switch is required on all check valves and, if so, provide a specification for the limit switches, 

indicate whether they are to be provided by the Check Valve supplier or by the Instrumentation 

supplier, and revise the drawings accordingly.

RESPONSE:  The documents will be revised to indicate that limit switches are required for all new 

check valves.   Specification Section 40 23 21, paragraph 2.06 was revised via “Revised” 

Addendum 3 to state that each check valve shall be provided with a limit switch to provide 

remote position monitoring.  Limit switches shall be provided by the Check Valve Supplier.  Refer 

to Specification Section 40 90 10, paragraph 2.03, G for limit switch specification.

50. QUESTION:   Drawing PM03 and Section B on Drawing PM04 show 30” Flexible Couplings 

between the Headworks and Grit Unit #2.  Please provide a specification for these couplings.

RESPONSE:   Use restrained joint couplings.  A specification for restrained joint couplings of this 

size is added by Attachment A, this addendum.

51. QUESTION: Please provide a specification for the 30” Knife Gate Valves at Grit Unit #2.

RESPONSE: A specification for knife gate valves is provided in Attachment A, this addendum.

52. QUESTION:   Section B on Drawing PM04 shows a 6” I-Beam Support on the Influent Piping to Grit 

Unit #2 per Detail D on Drawing S25.  Detail D on Drawing S25 is specifically called  “Grit 

Chamber Influent Pipe Support” .  There is no indication on Drawing PM03, PM04, or in Detail D 

on Drawing S25 that a similar support is required for the 30” outlet piping from Grit Unit #2 but 

the Plan on Drawing S02 says a support is required at each of the 30” Knife Gate Valves.  Please 

clarify whether this support is required only at the 30” connection of the influent piping to Grit 

Unit #2 as shown  on the PM Drawings and per Detail D on Drawing S25, at each of the 30” Knife 

Gate Valves as shown on Drawing S02, or some other configuration of supports.

Addendum_#6.pdf Page 7 of 16 received 2020 01 09



Page 8 of 16

RESPONSE:  Supports are required for both the inlet and outlet piping. The name on the detail 

on Sheet S25 has been changed per Attachment A, this addendum, to Grit Chamber 

Influent/Effluent Pipe Support.

53. QUESTION:   Note 1 on Drawing PM02 says “All piping is DI unless otherwise noted”.  In Section B 

on Drawing PM04 there is a note that says  “4” SCH 80 PVC Piping to Grit Pump No.2” .  The 

Isometrics for Grit Pumps 1 and 2 on Drawing PM05 appear to show Schedule 80 PVC pipe and 

fittings from Grit Units 1 and 2 up to the tees above the pumps.  These tees and every fitting 

downstream of them appear to be flanged.  Are these fittings intended to be PVC fittings with 

PVC flanges attached on all sides or should  all of  these fittings be ductile iron flanged fittings? 

Please clearly define the point at which the piping transitions from PVC to Ductile Iron.  Again, a 

piping schedule for the entire project that lists the pipe material and interior lining for each 

process would be very helpful.

RESPONSE: The PVC piping ends at the tees above the pumps. All other pipe and fittings are DI.

54. QUESTION:   Note 1 on Drawing PM02 says “All piping is DI unless otherwise noted”.  The 4” and 

6” Drain Piping in the Lower Plan on Drawing PM02 is shown as PVC, but no details are given. 

Section A and the Isometrics for Grit Pumps 1 and 2 on Drawing PM05 appear to show all of the 

6” Drain Piping as Ductile Iron.  Please clearly define the point at which the piping transitions 

from Ductile Iron to PVC.  Also, please indicate the type of PVC piping required (Schedule 40, 

Schedule 80, C900, SDR 26, etc.)  Again, a piping schedule for the entire project that lists the 

pipe material and interior lining for each process would be very helpful.

RESPONSE:  All above ground drain piping and drain piping through slabs is to be DI.  Below 

ground drain piping can be SDR-35.

55. QUESTION:   There is a 4” Manually Operated Plug Valve shown in the piping between Grit Unit 

#1 and Grit Unit #2 in Section A on Drawing PM05.  This valve is not listed in the Valve Schedule 

on Drawing PM30.  Please add this valve to the schedule and confirm that this valve is to be 

provided per Specification 40 23 21, Paragraph 2.02.

RESPONSE:  The valve has been labeled and added to the valve schedule by Attachment A, this 

addendum.

56. QUESTION:   Again, I would like to request that you extend the deadline for questions.  This is a 

complicated project and it will take a lot more time for  all of  the bidders, subcontractors, and 

suppliers to analyze the project and clear up any conflicts.  It is in the City’s best interest to 

answer as many questions as possible prior to the bid deadline – any remaining issues will have 

to be priced at the most expensive option so that we are covered in our bid.  

RESPONSE: See revised dates in Addendum #5.

57. QUESTION:   I would also like to request that the bid due date be extended for several weeks 

because of the upcoming holidays.

RESPONSE: See revised dates in Addendum #5.

58. QUESTION:   Was attendance of the Prebid meeting mandatory and a requirement for bidding 

this project?

RESPONSE: No.
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59. QUESTION:   A note at the lower left side of Drawing C06 says  “IMPORT 29,000 CY (FOR BOTH 

PONDS) TO FILL & STABILIZE EXISTING PONDS FOR NEW AERATION BASINS.”   Please confirm that 

29,000 CY of compacted fill is  sufficient  to fill these ponds to the lines and grades shown and 

that if additional fill is required a change order for the additional cost will be issued to the 

Contractor.

RESPONSE: A change order will be issued if the amount of fill required exceeds 29,000 CY.

60. QUESTION:   In Detail A on Drawing C06 there is a note at the east end of the Aeration Basins that  

says   “RELOCATE AIR RELEASE VALVES (TYP)” .  The Yard Piping Key Plan and Yard Piping Partial 

Plan No. 2 on Drawings C08 and C10 respectively, show no work at this location.  Presumably 

these are the air release lines that are attached, at great depth, to the mixed liquor piping 

between the Aeration Basins and each of the four Clarifiers.  Please provide details, including 

elevations of the piping (both 30” ML piping and the attached air release piping), locations of 

any existing valves for shutoff purposes, pipe size and proposed fittings on the air release lines, 

and the proposed locations of the four (4) air release valves along with details of how they are 

to be terminated, i.e. in a meter vault below grade, at a pad above grade, etc.

RESPONSE:  The requirement to relocate the air release valves on Sheet C06 has been deleted 

per Attachment A, this addendum.

61. QUESTION:   At the lower right corner of Drawing PM07 is a note that  says   “REMOVE 16” BLIND 

FLANGE AND CONNECT TO EXIST 16” RAS” .  The continuation of this line on Drawing PM12 

shows a 30” MJ 90° Bend at the upper left corner of the drawing.  Please confirm that the point 

of connection for the RAS piping shown on Drawing PM07 is an existing 16” MJ 90° bend and not 

a flanged connection as noted.  Also confirm that the entire proposed RAS line is 16” and that no 

portion of the line is to be 30” as noted on Drawing PM12.

RESPONSE:  The connection point to the existing RAS piping on Sheet PM07 is an existing 16” MJ 

Ell.  All RAS piping is 16”.

62. QUESTION:   The FRP Tube Support Detail on Drawing PM11 shows two 4” square tubes but 

requires a minimum of 10” between the wall and the back of the grating.  Are two 4” square 

tubes, which will only provide 8” between the wall and the grating, acceptable or should one 4” 

square tube and one 6” x 4” rectangular tube be provided?  Also, please provide the required 

thickness of the solid FRP cover plate that is to cover the grating.

RESPONSE:  The square tubes are indicated to be 4" minimum. The Contractor may provide 

tubes of a different size to achieve the minimum gap of 10" specified. The "solid cover plate" is 

integral with the molded grating and is defined in the notes. The minimum thickness provided 

by the manufacturer is acceptable.

63. QUESTION:   For the three (3) sets of weir baffles at the Aeration Basins that are to be provided 

by the Owner, please confirm that the Owner will provide all of the materials required for the 

installation including the FRP grating and solid cover plates, FRP tube supports, ¾” diameter SST 

rods, nuts, and washers, epoxy, connecting hardware, material required for connection of tubes  

per FRP supplier, etc.  If anything is required to be provided by the Contractor, please 

specifically indicate which items are to be provided and the quantity of each item to be provided.

RESPONSE: All materials other than the epoxy will be provided.
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64. QUESTION:   For the equipment to be provided on this project, the specifications use the terms  

“or equal”, “or approved equal”, “or approved alternate” , and possibly other terms.  Do these 

terms indicate that proposed “equals” or “alternates” are to be approved by the Owner and/or 

Engineer prior to bidding?  For example, the Clarifier Equipment specification, 46 43 21, 

Paragraph 1.02 D. says  “Manufacturers not named in the Specification and meeting the 

requirements as set forth in paragraph B and C must submit to the Engineer, 15 working days 

prior to the bid date, detailed information describing how their proposed equipment will meet 

the specification.”   Is the Clarifier the only equipment for which an “equal” or “alternate” 

supplier must be approved prior to the bid?

RESPONSE:  The City encourages requests for “equals” or “alternates” during the bidding process 

to ensure equipment/material provided for in the bid will be accepted.

65. QUESTION:   Detail 2 on Drawing PM31 shows the connection of the typical pressure gauge 

assembly at a tee in the process piping.  Notations for this detail in multiple locations do not 

show tees in the process piping.  For example, the discharge piping for WAS Pump #4 and RAS 

Pump #4 on Drawings PM21 and PM22, and the discharge piping for Filter Dosing Pump #5 on 

Drawing PM 23 all have the pressure gauge assemblies shown as direct taps on the piping. 

Please confirm that pipe taps are acceptable for installation of pressure gauge assemblies and 

that tees in the process piping are not required unless specifically shown.

RESPONSE:  Welded ½ couplings (bosses) are acceptable in lieu of tees.  No direct tapping of pipe 

is allowed.

66. QUESTION:   A 16” dismantling joint is shown on the discharge piping of RAS Pump #4 on 

Drawings PM21 and PM22.  Please provide a specification for dismantling joints.

RESPONSE: A specification for dismantling joints is provided in Attachment A, this addendum.

67. QUESTION:   Drawing PM21 shows 2” CS tubing at each of the Chlorine Solution Injection Points. 

Drawing C12 shows 1-1/2” CS tubing at each of the four Filters.  Detail 1 on Drawing PM31 

shows ¾” pipe, fittings, and valves, a ½” inlet connection, a ½” solution tube on the injector, and 

threaded connections.  Specification 46 31 11, Paragraph 2.02 K. indicates that injectors are to 

have 1-1/2” solution tubes and type 316 stainless steel flanges.  Please clarify the sizes of the 

tubing, pipe, fittings, valves, inlet connection, and solution tube for the injector  and also  indicate 

whether a flanged or threaded connection is required.  If a flanged connection is required, the 

existing and proposed piping at the RAS injection points will need to be modified, which is not 

shown on Drawing PM21.  Flanged tees will need to be installed at both RAS injection points. 

Similarly, please indicate whether the connections at each of the four filters are flanged or 

threaded connections.

RESPONSE:    The detail on Sheet PM31 has been replaced per Attachment A, this addendum, to 

provide additional details on the injection piping.  All new solution injectors will be installed on 

existing 1” threaded coupling pipe connections.

68. QUESTION:   The Composite Junction Box Details 1 and 2 on Drawing C13 show a 2” Sch. 80 PVC 

line going up and over the north wall of Chlorine Contact Chambers 1 through 4.  Specification 

46 31 11, Paragraph 2.02 K.1. indicates that a total of ten (10) injectors are required for the 

project, including four (4) injectors at this location (pre-CCC).  Please clarify whether injectors 
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are required at this location, and if they are required, please provide details of the connection. 

If injectors are not required at this location, please revise the specification accordingly.

RESPONSE:  The specifications have been revised per Attachment A, this addendum, to correctly 

indicate the number of injectors required.  

69. QUESTION:   Drawing PM25 shows a Double Swing Gate with Padlock Provision at the Chlorine 

Building.  Detail 2 on Drawing PM28 shows the double swing gate but no information on the 

fencing, posts, rails, hinges, mesh, connection to the building, etc. are provided.  Please provide 

a specification and details of the proposed fencing/gate installation.  Also, please provide the 

required height of the fencing/gate.

RESPONSE: A fence detail and specification have been added per Attachment A, this addendum.

70. QUESTION:   Please provide a specification for the 1-1/2” hose valve shown in Detail 10 on 

Drawing PM32.

RESPONSE: A specification for hose valves is provided in Attachment A, this addendum.

71. QUESTION:   The last sentence of Specification 40 23 22, Paragraph 1.01 A.1. says  “Modifications 

to the existing telescoping valve mountings and extending the operator stem to accommodate 

the existing handrails is also included.”   No other reference to telescoping valves appears in the 

bid documents.  Please identify the location of the existing telescoping valves to be modified 

and provide details on exactly how they are to be modified.

RESPONSE:  The telescoping valves are mounted on the slide gate frames; they are to be 

removed and remounted to the new slide gate frames.

72. QUESTION:   Specification 40 23 22, Paragraph 1.01 A.1. indicates that two (2) 48” x 48” slide 

gates and two (2) 54” x 60” weir gates are to be removed and replaced with new gates.  The 

Gate Schedule on Drawing PM30 indicates that three (3) 48” x 48” slide gates and two (2) 54” x 

30” weir gates are to be installed.  Drawing PM33 shows five (5) slide gates to be replaced. 

Please confirm the location, quantity, and dimensions of all weir gates and slide gates that are 

required to be removed and replaced.

RESPONSE:  The specification has been revised to indicate the correct number of slide gates to 

be replaced in Attachment 1, this addendum.  A revised gate schedule was issued with 

Addendum 3 with additional gate information.

73. QUESTION:   Specification 40 23 22, Paragraph 3.01 B.  says   “The Contractor shall cut off and grind 

existing anchor bolts flush with the concrete and chip out existing 6” x 5”  blockout  and grout fill 

at the time of installation.”   Please clarify this requirement and provide details for the removal 

of the existing weir gates and slide gates and installation details for the new weir gates and slide 

gates.

RESPONSE:  Remove existing gates and hardware as necessary for installation of the new gates. 

Install new gates in accordance with mfr recommendations.

74. QUESTION:   Drawings C07 and PM31 each have bollard details with different pipe lengths 

required.  Please indicate which detail should be used for this project.

RESPONSE: The detail on Sheet PM31 has been deleted per Attachment A, this addendum.
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75. QUESTION:   Detail 2 on Drawing E69 shows a sump pump to be installed in each Power Manhole 

and Detail 1 on Drawing E69,  Note  4 says to provide a sump pump in each Control Manhole that 

is not located adjacent to a Power Manhole.  The note in Detail 2 indicates that the pump is to 

be  “ Hydropnuematic  or equal” , which implies that an air compressor is also required.  This is not 

enough information to determine the requirements for these pumps .   There are no 

specifications for sump pumps or associated air compressors for this application and Drawing 

E69 is the only reference to sump pumps in the bid documents.  The electrical subcontractors 

will not pick up these pumps in their scope of supply so please provide specifications for the 

sump pumps and indicate the total quantity of sump pumps required.

RESPONSE:    The drawings will be revised to clarify that five (5) sump pumps are required.  A 

specification has been added by Attachment A, this addendum.

76. QUESTION:   The drawings call out seal offs to be used in different locations around the project. 

Will EYS type or EYSR type seal offs be acceptable for all locations?  We would like to request 

that a compound, FST, made by American Polywater be used in lieu of the EYS/EYSR seal off 

fittings. Attached is a specification sheet from the manufacturer. Will this be acceptable?

RESPONSE:  Provide seal offs per contract documents (EYS and EYSR).  Polywater FST foam duct 

sealant is approved as an equal to Chico sealing compound.  

77. QUESTION: Please provide a copy of the sign-in sheet for the pre-bid meeting.

RESPONSE: This has been posted on Demandstar.

78. QUESTION:   WesTech  requests the following modifications to Section 46 43 21.  These changes 

will ensure the new mechanism matches the existing clarifier mechanisms at the treatment 

facility.  This cohesion between  all of  the clarifier mechanisms will simplify operations, 

maintenance, and part replacements/inventory.

79. QUESTION: Section 46 43 21
a. 1.01_A._3._h.  Please replace 25,000 ft-lb with 18,500 ft-lb
b. 1.01_A._3._i.  Please replaced 82,000 ft-lb with 37,000 ft-lb
c. 1.01_A._3._j.  Please replace 6-24 ft/min with 6-15 ft/min

i. These changes will ensure the new drive unit matches the existing units
d. 1.01_A._4._g.  Please replace 6’-0” with 5’-0”
e. 1.01_A._4._k. & l.  Please replace 4’-0” square with 3’-0” square
f. 1.01_A._4._o.  Please delete rotating, and replace 5’-10” with 16’
g. 1.01_A._4._p.  Please delete rotating, and replace 24” with 7”

i. These changes will ensure that the internal clarifier components match the 
existing clarifiers internal components

h. 2.02_A.  Center Drive Assembly-please replace this entire section with the attached 
specification verbiage for the Center Drive Unit

i. This change will ensure the new drive assembly matches the existing drive units 
at the facility

i. 2.02_B._2.  Please replace 12’-0” x 12’-0” with 9’-0” x 9’-0”
i. The existing clarifiers have 9’ x 9’ square center drive platforms

j. 2.02_I._1.  Please add “of the Drive Unit” after Shop Painting in this paragraph
k. 2.02_I._2.  Please add “by the contractor” after Field Painting in this paragraph
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i. Note the drive unit will be delivered finished painted.  Typically only touch up 
painting is required in the field by the installing contractor.

RESPONSE: A revised specification is included in Attachment A, this addendum.

80. QUESTION: Section 46 23 24 – Grit Removal Chamber and Grit Cyclone

- 2.05 Control Panel cross references section 40 90 25 for the PLC which requires a  Modicon  PLC. 
This is not a PLC brand that we would use for our control panel.  We assume for service support, 
you would want our standard PLC and we would intend to use an Allen-Bradley equivalent.    
RESPONSE: An Allen-Bradley equivalent PLC is acceptable for this panel.

- The pressure requirements for the grit  hydrocyclone  in the grit system specification is 200  gpm  
at 18.5’ (8  psig ) at the inlet to the cyclone.  The condition in the grit pump section 46 42 58 – 
Vortex Grit Pump calls out 200  gpm  at 20’ TDH.   Please confirm that all the piping and fitting 
losses from will only be 1.5’ to get to the specified pump TDH of 20’.
RESPONSE:  The pressure requirements for the grit hydrocyclone are correct.

- 2.03 calls for an insulated enclosed, vented aluminum cover to decrease the noise level to below 
75  dB.    The noise level of the blower will at 75 dB without the cover and we don’t recommend 
putting this type of blower under an insulated aluminum cover due to overheating 
issues.  Typically ,  the blowers are just outdoors in the open air for service, maintenance and due 
to their low dB.
RESPONSE:  An aluminum cover is not required if the sound level of the air compressor is less 
than 75 dB without one.

81. QUESTION:  On the plan drawing P&ID diagram, drawing number I02.  In addition to the existing 

and new regen blower, new and existing solenoid valve for water scour to bottom of grit unit, 

existing and new grit pumps, and existing and new motor actuated pinch valves to be controlled 

by the Grit System Control Panel (GSPC), control is also shown from the GSCP for a pressure 

switch for each blower which is not included or needed (none specified in blower of grit spec), a 

grit pump automatic influent flush valve for each pump, a grit pump automatic influent valve for 

each pump, a girt pump automatic effluent flush valve for each pump, and a grit pump 

automatic effluent valve for each pump.  All of these are not specifically called out in 2.05 of 46 

23 34 for the control panel.   All of  above is also called out on the electrical control riser diagram 

drawing E24. Are all these items necessary? Are they to be included?    What  are  their purpose? 

How does these valves operate in the general sequence of operation?

RESPONSE: All items noted are necessary and shall be included. Section 46 23 24 includes a 

control summary for the components.

82. QUESTION:  My only two questions are in the 260800, they do not specify wire size for cable 

testing and   the circuit breakers testing is not specified by size.  I would like clarification on wire 

size and breaker size that they would like tested.

R ESPONSE :   Wire sizes #6 AWG and larger shall be tested.  Circuit breaker sizes 225 amp and 
larger shall be tested.  

83. QUESTION:  Will there be a specification released for the FRP Ductwork shown on drawings: 

PM03, PM04, PM15 & PM16?

RESPONSE:  A specification is provided in Attachment A, this addendum.
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Specification Section 43 22 13: Mechanical Surface Aerators

84. QUESTION:   2.02.B.8 - Requires 316 SS  Jackstuds , previous project utilized Zinc Plated studs. I 
just wanted to confirm the requirement of 316 SS is what is wanted.
RESPONSE: Use 316 SS.

85. QUESTION :  3.03.A – Item 1 gives the right of the Engineer to inspect the equipment at point of 
manufacture. Item 4 requires the cost of these inspections to be included in the cost of the 
equipment. Please clarify if the equipment cost shall include the possible travel cost of the 
engineer to the various points of manufacture if the engineer chooses to inspect. The number of 
personnel, days required for inspection will also be needed to properly estimate  these added 
costs.   
RESPONSE:  The specifications  have been revised per Attachment A, this addendum, to remove 
this requirement.

86. QUESTION :  3.03.C.4.d - Please clarify the intent of this item. Onsite OTE testing would add 
significant cost to the price of this equipment package.
RESPONSE :   The specifications have been revised per Attachment A, this addendum, to remove 
this requirement.

87. QUESTION:   We would like to request an additional 185 days be added to the contract time for 
this project, taking it to 550 days. It is our opinion that 365 days is not nearly enough time 
considering the amount of work involved.
RESPONSE: The contract time has been amended.

88. QUESTION:   We request that Revere Control Systems, Inc. be added as an approved system 
integrator on this project. We have done systems integration work for the City in the past. We 
have completed similar projects with multiple municipalities in Florida.
RESPONSE: This question has already been answered.

89. QUESTION:   Under Section X of the  Contract,  Item  7 - Builder’s Risk Insurance – coverage for 

flood and earthquake are required.  Our agent has indicated that these two coverages will add 

nearly $25,000 to the annual premium (for the project duration this would amount to almost 

$50,000).  Please confirm that we are to include this expensive coverage.

RESPONSE: Builder’s Risk insurance must be a minimum of $14,500,000.00 in value.

90. QUESTION:   Drawing PM02 shows the air piping between the Air Compressor and Grit Unit #2 as 

1” Stainless Steel.  The note to the right of Grit Unit #2 on Drawing PM03 shows the piping as 2”  

reducing to 1-1/2” at the tank connection.  Please clarify whether the air piping between the Air 

Compressor and Grit Unit #2 is to be 2” Stainless Steel or 1” Stainless Steel.

RESPONSE: The piping shall be 2”.
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91. QUESTION:   Drawing PM03 shows a “Duct Support” under the 6” FRP Duct near Grit Unit #2. 

There is no detail for this support.  Please provide a detail for the support that is required at this 

location.

RESPONSE: Use a miscellaneous pipe support; Detail B Sheet S25. 

92. QUESTION:   Drawing PM03 shows an existing aluminum enclosure and a new aluminum 

enclosure over the screenings discharge pipes.  Section A on Drawing PM04 shows these same 

enclosures but indicates that the existing enclosure is to be modified.  No details are provided 

for either the new enclosure or modifications to the existing enclosure.  Please provide details of 

the requirements at each of these locations (material, thickness, connections to the concrete 

slab, pipe penetrations, modifications required, etc.)

RESPONSE:   For the existing enclosure, the box shall be modified to switch the hinged side from 

the east side to the west side.  For the new enclosure, provide a 1/4” thick aluminum box 3’ W x 

3” L x 3’ H with a flanged opening at the bottom attached to the structure deck with 3/8” 316 SS 

anchors with 3” embedment.  The east side of the enclosure shall be hinged. 

93. QUESTION:   Drawing PM04 shows removal of the existing duct/rubber hose and replacement 

with a new  stainless steel  chute.  Lateral bracing is shown on the chute and a note  makes 

reference  to a detail but no detail of the chute or the bracing has been provided.  Please provide 

details of the chute and required bracing (material, dimensions, connections to the existing 

structure, etc.)

RESPONSE:   A detail and a specification were added in Addendum 3 for the bracing and the duct 

details.

94. QUESTION:   Please provide a detail or specification for the 24” SQ Duct Expansion Joint shown in 

Section A on Drawing PM04.

RESPONSE:   Provide a Senior  Flextronixs  Pathway FAB expansion joint or approved equal.  Joint 

shall have a Teflon belt and a SS frame. 

95. QUESTION:   In Section C on Drawing PM04 the Mechanical Bar Screen is shown recessed 4” in 6” 

of grout in the channel.  Drawing S02 does not mention any work to be done in the channel.  Is 

the grout topping in the channel existing?  If it is existing, are we required to create the recess? 

If it is not existing, please provide details on the extent of channel grouting required.

RESPONSE: The grout is not existing.  The entire channel shall be grouted.

96. QUESTION:   The note above Anoxic Basin #5 on Drawing PM15 indicates that 3” x 3” x 3/8” 

Aluminum Supports are required for the FRP Duct.  Section A on Drawing PM16 refers to the FRP 

Duct Support shown in Detail E on Drawing S25 for support of the FRP Duct to Anoxic  Basins  4 , 5, 

and 6.  Please confirm that we are to provide FRP Duct Supports as shown in Detail E on Drawing 

S25.  If 3” x 3” x 3/8” supports are required at these locations as shown on Drawing PM15, 

please provide details for this type of support and modify the notes on the drawings accordingly.

RESPONSE: The notes on Drawing PM15 have been deleted by Attachment A, this addendum.

97. QUESTION:   Section B on Drawing PM09 and Section A on Drawing PM10 show Pipe Hangers for 

the 20” IR Piping and reference Detail I on Drawing S25.  Detail I on Drawing S25 is for a Flanged 

Addendum_#6.pdf Page 15 of 16 received 2020 01 09



Page 16 of 16

Stanchion Pipe Support.  The only hanger type support is shown in Detail H on Drawing S25 and 

utilizes a 316 Stainless Steel Clevis Hanger.  There doesn’t appear to be sufficient space between 

the top of the 20” pipe and the underside of the slab at these locations to install a clevis type 

hanger.  Please provide a detail for the hanger supports to be installed at the 20” IR Piping.

RESPONSE:   Adequate space is anticipated for the clevis hangers.  The existing IR pipe has clevis 

hangers.

REVISIONS:

1. The Liquidated Damage dollar amount value is revised to $5,000.00 per day.

SECTION XXI
TERMINATION, DELAYS AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

B.  Liquidated Damages for Delays. If material is not provided or work is not completed within the time 
stipulated in this Contract, including any extensions of time for excusable delays as herein provided, (it 
being impossible to determine the actual damages occasioned by the delay) the Contractor shall provide 
to the City  three thousand five hundred dollars ($3,500.00)     five thousand dollars ($5,000.00)   as fixed, 
agreed and liquidated damages for each calendar day of delay until the work is completed.  The 
Contractor and his sureties shall be jointly and severally liable to the City for the amount thereof.
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